
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Mackey

AGENDA October 06, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Mackey

Presentation Chairman Chester Bankston and the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners - Agenda
Session only September 30, 2015.

Presentation Presentation by Superintendent Brad Bennett - Moccasin Bend National Archeological District
Overview - Agenda Session only September 30, 2015.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - September 9, 2015

Minutes Agenda Session - September 9, 2015

Minutes Regular Meeting - September 16, 2015

Report Criminal Court Clerk's Report - July 2015

Report Trustee Monthly Report - August 2015

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report - August 2015

Report Juvenile Court Clerk's Report - July 2015

Res. No. 1015-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, and the bonds and
oaths of notaries previously elected.

Res. No. 1015-2 A Resolution to appoint members to the Hamilton County Audit Committee.

Res. No. 1015-3 A Resolution confirming the appointment of one member and reappointment of two members by
the County Mayor to the Hamilton County Board of Electrical Examiners, terms ending
September 7, 2019.

Res. No. 1015-4 A Resolution authorizing the appointment of a representative to the Hamilton County Community
Corrections Advisory Board.

Res. No. 1015-5 A Resolution accepting a State of Tennessee, Governor’s Highway Safety Office grant for the
“Safe Journey” project with a term ending September 30, 2016 and amending the Sheriff’s office
operating budget by adding $124,999.96 to revenues and expenditures.

Res. No. 1015-6 A Resolution making an appropriation to Harrison Recreational Booster Club in the amount of
one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Five.

Res. No. 1015-7 A Resolution making an appropriation to Walden's Ridge Emergency Services in the amount of
thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to
District Two.

Res. No. 1015-8 A Resolution making an appropriation to Orange Grove Center in the amount of ten thousand
dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District Nine.

Res. No. 1015-9 A Resolution making an appropriation to Orange Grove Center, Inc., in the amount of ten
thousand dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Seven.

Res. No. 1015-10 A Resolution making an appropriation to Orange Grove Center, Inc., in the amount of ten
thousand dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Four.

Res. No. 1015-11 A Resolution making an appropriation to Highland Park Neighborhood Association in the amount
of Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to
District Four.

Res. No. 1015-12 A Resolution making an appropriation to Sculpture Fields at Montague Park in the amount of Six
Thousand Dollars ($6,000.00) from discretionary Bond Funds, as allotted to District Four.



Res. No. 1015-13 A Resolution making an appropriation to Southeast Tennessee Health Consortium in the amount
of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District Four.

Res. No. 1015-14 A Resolution making an appropriation to Stop the Madness National, Inc., in the amount of three
thousand dollars ($3,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Four.

Res. No. 1015-15 A Resolution making an appropriation to Churchville Neighborhood Association, Inc., in the
amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted
to District Four.

Res. No. 1015-16 A Resolution making an appropriation to Community Foundation of Greater Chattanooga, Inc., in
the amount of one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500.00) from General Fund discretionary
monies, as allotted to District Four.

Res. No. 1015-17 A Resolution approving the expenditure of Eleven Thousand Three Hundred Fifty Dollars
($11,350.00) from General Fund discretionary monies (as allotted to District One) to assist the
City of Soddy Daisy with repairs at Veterans Memorial Park.

Res. No. 1015-18 A Resolution making an appropriation to Bakewell Community Center in the amount of Six
Thousand Four Hundred Dollars ($6,400.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District One.

Res. No. 1015-19 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to submit a FastTrack Economic Development Fund
Grant application to the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development in an
amount not to exceed $5.5 million to assist Gestamp Chattanooga, LLC with equipment and
building improvements to support the expansion of the company's Hamilton County operations.

Res. No. 1015-20 A Resolution approving an Amendment to the Payment In Lieu of Taxes (“PILOT”) Agreement
previously entered into among Hamilton County, Tennessee, the City of Chattanooga, the
Industrial Development Board of the County of Hamilton, Tennessee and Gestamp
Chattanooga, LLC, and authorizing the County Mayor to execute said amendment.

Res. No. 1015-21 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of August 1, 2015,
through August 31, 2015, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1015-22 A Resolution approving a software update and support contract for Cityworks from Azteca
Systems, Inc. for one (1) year, beginning November 11, 2015, through November 10, 2016, for
the Geographic Information Systems Department amounting to $33,750.00 and authorizing the
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1015-23 A Resolution accepting the bid of Lee Smith, Inc. for one (1) tandem axle dump truck amounting
to $119,250.00 for the Highway Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1015-24 A Resolution to amend the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” so as to accept the following
district roads and to establish speed limits therefor: Will Drive and Tom Tom Trail.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  September 9, 2015 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 9th day of September, 2015, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston. Total present – 9.  Total absent -0. 

 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Fairbanks introduced Pastor Alan Stewart, Rechoboth Baptist 

Church, who gave the invocation. Commissioner Fairbanks led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 

2 
 

Chairman Bankston announced that there was not any scheduled business for 

the Recessed Meeting and asked if anyone had any announcements. 

 

 Being no further business Chairman Bankston declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

 

     Respectfully submitted: 

      

     ______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

Approved: 
 
 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  September 9, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 9th day of September, 2015, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston.  Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 2

PRESENTATION-MIRACLE LEAGUE OF CHATTANOOGA 

 

 Kim Chapman, President of the Miracle League Board, gave a presentation on 

the Miracle League of Chattanooga. The Miracle League is a baseball league that gives 

children with disabilities the opportunity to play baseball safely on a specially designed 

field. Mrs. Chapman explained that according to the 2010 census, there are roughly 

13,000 handicapped children and adults in Hamilton County with no place to play 

baseball safely. Mrs. Chapman played a brief video for members of the Commission 

that highlighted the importance of having a place for children with special needs to play 

baseball.  

 

 Mrs. Chapman introduced Chas Torrence, Vice President of the Board. Mr. 

Torrence gave an overview of the structure and design of the field located at Warner 

Park in Chattanooga as well as a pavilion, playground, and a multi-purpose field for 

other sports and activities.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Smedley’s question, Mr. Torrence clarified that the 

total projected cost of the project is $1.4 million, $1 million of which has already been 

committed through fundraisers and private donors.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 3

 In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Mrs. Chapman clarified that the 

closest Miracle League baseball field is in Whitfield County. It was noted that there is 

not currently a field in Tennessee. 

 

 She requested Commissioners to consider making a donation from their 

discretionary accounts. 

 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered 

as follows: 

 An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as 
matter of record.   

 Resolution No. 915-21 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc. 
This required no committee assignment.  

 Resolution Nos. 915-22A and 915-22B were assigned to the Zoning Committee, 
chaired by Commissioner Haynes.  

 Resolution Nos. 915-32 and 915-33 were assigned the Finance Committee, 
chaired by Commissioner Boyd.  

 Resolution Nos. 915-23 through 915-31 and 915-34 were heard by a Committee 
of the Whole.  
 

Chairman Bankston stated that Resolution Nos. 915-23 through 915-31 and 915-

34 would now be heard by the Committee of the Whole.  

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 4

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 915-23 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks spoke regarding this Resolution, which approves 

making an appropriation to Dallas Bay Volunteer Fire Department in the amount of 

$5,000.00 from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 1. The funding 

will assist the fire department with the purchase of a truck.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 915-24 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks spoke regarding this Resolution, which approves 

making an appropriation to Orange Grove Center in the amount of $10,000.00 from 

general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 1. The funding will assist the 

nonprofit organization with the purchase of baling equipment 

  

There were no questions from Commissioners.  

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 5

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 915-25 

  

 Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this Resolution, which approves making an 

appropriation to Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department in the amount of $13,000.00 from 

general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 1. The funding will assist the 

fire department with the purchase of new equipment.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 915-26 

  

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this Resolution, which approves making 

an appropriation to East Lake Neighborhood Association in the amount of $1,800.00 

from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 4.  The funding will assist 

with the cost of the East Lake Festival.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 6

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 915-27 

 

Commissioner Smedley spoke regarding this Resolution, which approves making 

an appropriation to Veterans Memorial Park of Collegedale in the amount of $10,000.00 

from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 7. The funding will assist 

the park in completing renovations. Commissioner Smedley added that the funds would 

also be used to assist with the painting and mounting of a TA-4J fighter aircraft that was 

donated by the Navy, as well as the dedication of a monument to the five service 

members who lost their lives during the July 16th shootings in Chattanooga. In closing, 

Commissioner Smedley spoke about meeting with a Veteran’s group, many of whom 

are disabled, and the importance of this project to them.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 915-28 

 

 Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this Resolution, which approves making an 

appropriation to The Next Door, Inc. in the amount of $1,000.00 from general fund 

discretionary monies, as allotted to District 9. The funding will assist the nonprofit with 

their program that allows currently incarcerated women to receive transitional services 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 7

to help with re-entering society and the workforce. He noted that this program is offered 

in partnership with the Tennessee Department of Corrections.  

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 915-29 

  

 Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this Resolution, which authorizes the 

County Mayor to award five days of paid leave for the purpose of encouraging all 

Hamilton County employees to participate in the United Way campaign through payroll 

deduction. It was noted that Mayor Coppinger left the meeting before discussion of this 

item took place.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 915-30 

 

 Todd Leamon, Administrator of Hamilton County Public Works and County 

Engineer, spoke regarding this Resolution, which approves adopting by reference the 

updated National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) 

for unincorporated Hamilton County, Tennessee. Mr. Leamon added that the County 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 8

has collaborated with the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to provide 

updated maps that show the extent to which areas are at risk for flooding. An open 

house was held in April where Hamilton County residents were able to review the 

preliminary maps and ask questions. It was noted that 2002 was the last time the flood 

maps were updated.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 915-31 

 

 County Attorney Rheubin Taylor spoke regarding this Resolution, which 

approves the amending of a certain Payment In Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) agreement with 

Alstom Power, Inc. Attorney Taylor explained that this amendment was the result of an 

agreement reached between Hamilton County, the City of Chattanooga, the Industrial 

Development Board for the City of Chattanooga, and Alstom Power, Inc in response to 

Alstom’s performance under the previous PILOT.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Fields question, Attorney Taylor explained that 

under the new agreement Alstom would be paying 50% of the assessed value of the 

property as well as an advanced payment of $250,000.00 to the County and City by 

October 5th for the 2015 tax bill which is due February 2016. He added that another 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 9

review of the PILOT agreement will take place on or before March 15, 2016. In closing, 

Attorney Taylor noted that all parties involved have reviewed the agreement and 

recommend approval.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Haynes question, Attorney Taylor clarified that 

under the new provisions the total property tax payment due to the County by October 

5, 2015 is $250,000.00.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Attorney Taylor confirmed that the 

new agreement will apply to the company and any of its successors.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 915-34 

 

 Commissioner Graham asked that Resolution No. 915-34 be read into the record 

in its entirety.  

 

 Commissioner Graham spoke regarding this Resolution, which approves the 

return of the $100,000.00 appropriation for discretionary spending, as previously allotted 

to District 6, to the fund balance of the Hamilton County general fund, and authorizing 

the receipt of the same. Commissioner Graham spoke about his disapproval of the use 

of the general fund balance for discretionary spending, and his desire to see those 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 10

funds returned to the general fund balance for appropriation to needed projects 

throughout the County. In closing, Commissioner Graham expressed his willingness to 

commit the current balance of his expense account, as well as the expense money he 

will be allotted over the next two years of his term, to District 6 for specified projects.  

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners.  

 

 Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, announced that the 

Zoning Committee would be meeting in the Conference Room immediately following the 

Agenda Session.  

 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee announced that the 

Finance Committee would be meeting in the Commission Room immediately following 

the Agenda Session. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 11

Several Commissioners congratulated Times Free Press reporter Louie Brogdon 

on his upcoming move to Washington D.C. They thanked Mr. Brogdon for his fair and 

objective reporting. 

 

Commissioner Graham and Commissioner Smedley publicly gave out their cell 

phone numbers to Chairman Bankston. Commissioner Graham reported that his cell 

phone number is 423-255-6601 and was concerned that he had not received a call 

regarding committee assignment preferences.   Commissioner Smedley reported that 

her cell phone number is 423-309-5250, and indicated that she had not been consulted 

last year or this year regarding committee assignments. Attached is a copy of the 

Chairman’s 2015-2016 committee assignments.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd spoke about his support of discretionary funds. He talked 

about meeting with Julie Baumgardner, President and CEO of First Things First, a 

grassroots organization dedicated to strengthening families. Commissioner Boyd added 

that he invested a portion of his discretionary money into Dads Make a Difference, a 

faith based program designed to educate non-violent convicted felons on the positive 

involvement of fathers. In closing, Commissioner Boyd talked about the positive impact 

of keeping these young men from entering back into the prison system, and the amount 

of money in incarceration fees it saves the County.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 12

Commissioner Fields announced that September 17th is Constitution Day. He 

encouraged members of the Commission and the audience to attend the annual 

Constitution Day lecture at the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga (UTC) at 7:30 

pm in the UC Auditorium. Former UTC professor Wilfred M. McClay will be speaking 

about the relevancy of the Constitution given the changing times.  

 

 
Commissioner Smedley thanked Mike Dunn for the update on the status of the 

improvements of the intersection at Standifer Gap Road and Ooltewah Ringgold Road. 

She spoke about her recent trip to New York City and visit to the 9/11 Museum. She 

encouraged everyone never to forget the events that took place on September 11, 

2001.  

 

Chairman Bankston announced that the scheduled Commission Meeting on 

Wednesday, October 7th at 9:30 am, would be moved to Tuesday, October 6th at 9:30 

am. It was noted that several of the Commissioners plan to attend the Tennessee 

County Services Association 62nd Annual Fall Conference in Murfreesboro. The change 

from Wednesday October 7th to Tuesday October 6th was legally advertised. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 
 
 

 13

DELEGATIONS 

 

 Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 
 

Being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting adjourned 

until Wednesday, September 16th at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Approved: 
           

________   
Date      Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  September 16, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 16th day of September, 2015, a Regular 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, Assistant County Attorney Neill Southerland, and County Auditor 

Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

2 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks introduced Pastor Bill Henry, Calvary Bible Church, 

who gave the invocation. Commissioner Fairbanks introduced the Leadership Class 

from Boyd Buchanan School who led in the pledge to the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham, that 

the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of August 26, 2015, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of August 26, 2015, and the Regular Meeting of September 2, 2015, be 

approved, treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing Motion 

was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

 An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting of 

September 14, 2015. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

3 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-21  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 

NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, THE OATHS OF DEPUTY COUNTY CLERKS, 

THE OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF, AND THE OATH OF CHAIRMAN AND 

CHAIRMAN PRO TEMPORE OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 915-21.  

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

 The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston noted that Resolution Nos. 915-23 through 915-31 and 915-

34 were heard by the Committee of the Whole. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

4 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-23  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

DALLAS BAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT ONE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 915-23. 

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

 The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-24  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

ORANGE GROVE CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED 

TO DISTRICT ONE. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

5 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, 

to adopt Resolution No. 915-24.  

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

 The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Nay”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  

Total “Nay” votes – 1. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-25  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF THIRTEEN 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($13,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT ONE. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, 

to adopt Resolution No. 915-25.  

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

6 

 

 The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-26  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

EAST LAKE NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE 

THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,800.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 

DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 

  

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 915-26.  

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

  

 The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

7 

 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-27  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK OF COLLEGEDALE IN THE AMOUNT OF TEN 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT SEVEN. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 915-27.  

 

 Commissioner Smedley noted that a portion of the funds will be used to erect a 

monument for the five service members that were killed during the July 16th shootings in 

Chattanooga. She presented a photo of the monument to Commissioners. In response 

to a recent newspaper article, Commissioner Smedley clarified that while Collegedale 

does have its own tax base, a portion of the city lies within her district and she has a 

duty to represent them equally.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Chairman Bankston clarified 

that Veterans Memorial Park is in District 9. It was noted that Resolution No. 815-16, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

8 

 

adopted by the Commission on August 5th, appropriated $10,000.00 of discretionary 

monies allotted to District 9 to Veteran’s Memorial Park.  

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any further discussion. There was none.  

 

 The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-28  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO THE 

NEXT DOOR, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) 

FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT 

NINE. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 915-28.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

9 

 

 Commissioner Boyd spoke about the ongoing conversations regarding 

discretionary spending.  

  

 In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Assistant County Attorney Neill 

Southerland explained that discretionary funds can be allotted to either 501c3 or 501c4 

organizations. She clarified most civic organizations are classified as a 501c4.  It was 

noted that volunteer fire departments are considered 501c4 organizations. Attorney 

Southerland added that each organization should have current financial statements filed 

with the County Clerk’s office.   

 

 Commissioner Mackey spoke about discretionary spending and how it is 

scrutinized. He noted that if there was a misuse of funds, the media would call attention 

to it.    

 

 The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Nay”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  

Total “Nay” votes – 1. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

10 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-29  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO AWARD FIVE (5) DAYS OF PAID LEAVE FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

ENCOURAGING ALL HAMILTON COUNTY EMPLOYEES TO PARTICIPATE IN THE 

UNITED WAY CAMPAIGN THROUGH PAYROLL DEDUCTION. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 915-29.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Mayor Coppinger clarified that 

five County employees will be awarded one day of paid leave.  

 

 Alecia Poe, Human Resources Director, explained that a committee for the 

United Way program will draw five participating employee’s names at random. Those 

five employees will each be awarded one day of paid leave.  

 

 The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

11 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-30  A RESOLUTION ADOPTING BY REFERENCE THE 

UPDATED NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM (NFIP), FLOOD 

INSURANCE RATE MAPS (FIRM) FOR UNINCORPORATED HAMILTON COUNTY, 

TENNESSEE. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 915-30.  

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

 The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-31  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AMENDING OF A 

CERTAIN PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES (PILOT) AGREEMENT WITH ALSTOM 

POWER, INC.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

12 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 915-31.  

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

 The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-34 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RETURN TO THE 

FUND BALANCE OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY GENERAL FUND OF THE ONE 

HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLAR ($100,000.00) APPROPRIATION FOR 

DISCRETIONARY SPENDING AS PREVIOUSLY ALLOTTED TO COUNTY 

COMMISSION DISTRICT SIX (6), AND AUTHORIZING THE RECEIPT OF THE 

SAME.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 915-34.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

13 

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion.  

 

 Commissioner Haynes expressed his desire to offer a “friendly” amendment to 

the resolution. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

amend Resolution No. 915-34 to include returning to Hamilton County’s general fund 

$100,000.00 in discretionary funds previously appropriated to District 3. 

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion on the Motion to amend 

Resolution No. 915-34.  

 

 Commissioner Beck spoke about his support of discretionary spending. He 

emphasized that discretionary funds are a privilege for Hamilton County districts, and he 

highlighted several projects that have been made possible through the use of 

discretionary spending.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Commissioner Haynes explained 

that by returning the $100,000.00 in discretionary monies to the general fund balance 

he is representing the wishes of his constituents in District 3.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

14 

 

 Commissioner Mackey recognized the students from the Boyd-Buchanan School 

leadership class present at today’s meeting. He spoke about his support of discretionary 

spending. He noted that discretionary funds are a necessity in District 4 to complete 

much needed projects.    

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

amend Resolution No. 915-34 appropriating the returned discretionary monies, 

$100,000.00 from District 6 and $100,000 from District 3, to Orange Grove Center.  

 

 Assistant County Attorney Neill Southerland clarified that the motion to amend 

Resolution No. 915-34 accepting the return of $100,000.00 from District 3 to the 

General Fund must be voted on before consideration of motion to appropriate $200,000 

in discretionary funds to Orange Grove Center.  

 

 The foregoing Motion to amend Resolution No. 915-34 to include the 

$100,000.00 in discretionary monies from District 3 was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Nay”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Nay”, Commissioner Smedley, 

“Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” 

votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 2. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

15 

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion regarding the Motion to 

amend Resolution No. 915-34 to appropriate the returned discretionary monies, 

$100,000.00 from District 6 and $100,000 from District 3 to Orange Grove Center.  

 

 At this time, lengthy discussion took place re: the precedent of the Commission 

appropriating returned discretionary funds to another source.  

 

Commissioner Graham reiterated that it was at the request of District 6, and his 

duty as an elected official, to give the money back to the county’s reserve fund. He and 

Commissioner Haynes both restated that they did not support amending the 2015 – 

2016 Budget (Resolution No. 615-35A) which took $900,000 from the reserve fund 

(rainy day fund) and added it to the County Commission’s budget for equal discretionary 

spending between all districts. In closing Commissioner Graham addressed the Mayor 

and stated if discretionary monies can’t be solely designated to their respective district, 

then he supports eliminating 100% of discretionary monies from this point forward. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to call 

for the question on the Motion to amend Resolution No. 915-34.  

 

 The Chairman recognized Commissioner Mackey. 

   



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

16 

 

 Commissioner Mackey spoke at length about discretionary spending. He 

expressed his disapproval of the use of inflammatory language when discussing matters 

involving discretionary spending.  

 

 Chairman Bankston asked the Clerk to call the roll on the Motion requesting a 

vote.  

    

 The foregoing Motion calling for the question was unanimously adopted on a Roll 

Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

The foregoing Motion to amend Resolution No. 915-34 to appropriate the 

returned discretionary monies, $100,000.00 from District 6 and  $100,000 from District 

3, to Orange Grove Center, Inc. failed on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of 

the County Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, 

“Nay”, Commissioner Boyd, “Nay”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fields, “Nay”, Commissioner Graham, “Nay”, Commissioner Haynes, “Nay”, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

17 

 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 4.  Total “Nay” votes – 5.  

 

 The foregoing main Motion to adopt Resolution No. 915-34 as amended was 

adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Nay”, Commissioner Boyd, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Nay”, 

Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total 

absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 2. 

 

 Clerk Knowles asked that the County Attorney provide the Clerk’s office with a 

Resolution reflecting adoption of Resolution 915-34 as amended. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding how funds are allocated in the budget. He 

noted that every district in Hamilton County has access to public education and public 

health, and a large portion of the budget goes to fund those services. Mayor Coppinger 

spoke about the sales tax agreement that the County previously had with the City of 

Chattanooga. He noted that many agencies such as Orange Grove Center used to 

receive funding through that agreement.  When the City of Chattanooga chose not to 

renew that agreement with Hamilton County, the county was forced to cease funding 

those nonprofit agencies.  In closing, Mayor Coppinger spoke about the importance of 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

18 

 

preserving the reserve fund for emergencies. He added that preserving the reserve fund 

in the past saved the taxpayers a significant amount of money when the Commission 

voted to participate in funding Volkswagen projects.  

 

 Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 915-22A through 915-22C be 

considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-22A  A RESOLUTION GRANTING THE APPROVAL OF A 

SPECIAL PERMIT FOR AN AIRCRAFT LANDING STRIP PER ARTICLE VI, 

SECTION 402, ON A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED AT 2380 RETRO HUGHES ROAD. 

 

NO ACTION WAS TAKEN ON RESOLUTION NO. 915-22A 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-22B A RESOLUTION GRANTING THE APPROVAL OF A 

SPECIAL PERMIT FOR AN AIRCRAFT LANDING STRIP PER ARTICLE VI, 

SECTION 402, ON A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED AT 2380 RETRO HUGHES ROAD. 

 

NO ACTION WAS TAKEN ON RESOLUTION NO. 915-22B. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-22C  A RESOLUTION GRANTING THE APPROVAL OF A 

SPECIAL PERMIT FOR AN AIRCRAFT LANDING STRIP PER ARTICLE VI, 

SECTION 402, ON A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED AT 2380 RETRO HUGHES ROAD. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

19 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution No. 915-22A through 915-22C. He stated the Zoning Committee 

reviewed each item and recommended approval of Resolution No. 915-22C which is 

without conditions that limit the landing strip to ten 30-minute flights per month, and 

require that all airplanes that approach and take-off from the landing strip must do so 

from the north end. 

   

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 915-22C.  

   

 In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Commissioner Haynes clarified 

that the landing strip is a grass strip. It was noted that the recommended conditions 

require that the landing strip be limited to personal use by the property owners, no 

commercial operations are allowed, all take-off/landings will occur during the daylight 

hours, and the airstrip not be lighted. Commissioner Haynes added that there has been 

some opposition to the landing strip.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, the applicant, David Taylor 

residing at 9165 Leyland Drive Ooltewah, TN 37363 and owning property at 2380 Retro 

Hughes Road, clarified that the aircraft is a small single-engine recreational airplane 

made by Just Aircraft in South Carolina. He added that the noise level of the aircraft is 

low and could be compared to noise when operating a “bush-hog”.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

20 

 

 Harvey Anderson residing at 1022 Canyon Rim Drive Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 

and owning property at 2660 Retro Hughes Road and Barron Hodges residing at 127 

Thrasher Pike Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 and owning property at 2200 Retro Hughes 

Road spoke in opposition of Resolution No. 915-22C. They were each concerned with 

the size and the direction of the airstrip, as well as the 16,000 sq. ft. hanger on the 

property. It was noted that Mr. Anderson and Mr. Hodges were not in attendance at the 

Commission’s Zoning Committee meeting after last week’s agenda session. However, 

they both presented their objections at the recent Regional Planning Commission 

meeting.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Fields question, Commissioner Haynes clarified 

that Resolution No. 915-22C was approved by the Regional Planning Commission as 

well as the Zoning Committee.  

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any further discussion. There was none.  

 

 The foregoing Motion to adopt Resolution No. 915-22C was unanimously 

adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

21 

 

Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total 

absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 915-32 and 915-33 be 

considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-32  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN A CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $32,600 WITH THE SCENIC CITIES 

BEAUTIFUL COMMISSION TO PROVIDE LITTER PREVENTION EDUCATION 

SERVICES WITH A CONTRACT PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 01, 2015 AND ENDING 

JUNE 30, 2016. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 915-33  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF HENRY 

SCHEIN, INC., MIDWEST MEDICAL SUPPLY COMPANY, LLC (MMS), SCIENTIFIC 

SALES, INC. AND QUADMED FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, 

BEGINNING SEPTEMBER 16, 2015, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 15, 2016, FOR 

EMS/HI-RISK MEDICAL GLOVES AND BLOODBORNE PATHOGEN PERSONAL 

PROTECTION EQUIPMENT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

22 

 

 Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 915-32 and 915-33 and stated the Finance Committee 

reviewed each item and recommended approval.   

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 915-32 and 915-33. The foregoing motions were unanimously 

adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner Haynes was not present for the vote. Total 

present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission. 

 

Commissioner Graham thanked members of the Commission for the discussion 

that took place at today’s meeting. He reminded those in attendance about the 

Chattanooga Unite Memorial Tribute taking place on the River tonight. The Tribute is to 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

23 

 

honor the five fallen military service members killed here recently, and to accept 

donations to assist their surviving families.  

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke about the East Ridge High School football stadium. 

He reported that he has multiple bids to replace the stadium and will have budget 

numbers for demolition by the end of the week. He asked that any questions about the 

bid numbers by the media or public be directed to him. Commissioner Boyd also spoke 

about the importance of art in the community. In closing, he invited members of the 

Commission and audience to attend tonight’s benefit concert and to donate generously 

to the cause.  

 

Commissioner Fields reminded members of the Commission that September 17th 

is Constitution Day. He encouraged members of the Commission and the audience to 

attend the annual Constitution Day lecture at the University of Tennessee at 

Chattanooga (UTC) at 7:30 pm in the UC Auditorium. Former UTC professor Wilfred M. 

McClay will be speaking about the relevancy of the Constitution given the changing 

times.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks recognized the Boyd-Buchanan leadership class that 

was present at today’s meeting. He also recognized their leaders, Boyd Buchanan 

Football Coach Grant Reynolds, and Director of Operations, Mike Kirk. He also thanked 

Mayor Coppinger for his comments regarding the budget and discretionary spending.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

24 

 

He also expressed disagreement with inflammatory language that was used at a recent 

news conference relating to the discretionary spending issue.   

 

Commissioner Smedley also expressed her disapproval of the use of strong 

rhetoric when discussing matters of the Commission or fellow Commissioners. 

 

Commissioner Beck corrected his earlier statement where he referred to Miracle 

League Board President Kim Chapman as Mary Ellen Locher in error.   

 

Commissioner Haynes thanked Mayor Coppinger and members of the 

Commission for the discussion at today’s meeting. He noted that a motivational factor in 

his decision to return the funds back to the reserve fund was due to the state 

comptroller’s office stating that commissioners were not allowed to spend discretionary 

monies on education projects.  

 

Commissioner Mackey expressed his respect for Commissioner Graham in light 

of recent disagreements.  

 

 Commissioner Graham announced that the Diversity and Equity Committee 

meeting will take place Wednesday, September 30th after the Agenda Session.  

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 
 

25 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

 There being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, September 30, 2015 at 9:30 AM. 

 

       

      Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
 
   

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials        
 
 





























No. 1015-1 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
   A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, AND THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED.  

 
   
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2.  That persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 

 COUNTY  CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public 
 are hereby  approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths 
 therefor are approved as  taken; and 

 
3.  That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

 is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
 been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 



 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 1

 
Kasandra R. Acklin 1212 Sanford Ave. TVFCU 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 715 Market St. 
 423-697-7387 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-5100 
 
Kay Baker 822 Tremont St. Phoenix Investigative Services 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 100 Cherokee Blvd., Ste. 2108 
 770-330-2629 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  770-330-2629 
 
Mary L. Baker 3705 Shamrock Dr. N/A 
 Chattanooga, TN 37406 N/A 
 423-622-6644 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Amanda Bartoldmeolli 7429 Aventine Way, Apt. 310 Davis & Hoss, P.C. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 850 Fort Wood Street 
 423-544-5542 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-266-0605 
 
Lacey Beam 6489 Deep Canyon Rd. SunTrust 
 Hixson, TN 37350 802 Scenic Highway 
 423-619-4546 Lookout Mtn., TN 37350 
  N/A 
 
Kristi R. Berry 119 W. Walden Circle Law Office of Tom Bible 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 6918 Shallowford Rd. 
 423-800-0403 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-777-4668 
 
Laurel Brown 1325 Wildson Rd., Lot 11 Knight & Hooper, PLLC 
 Rossville, GA 30741 701 Market St., Ste. 700 
 423-710-4117 Chattanooga, TN 37401 
  423-267-1158 
 
Jessica L. Brunhoeber 8672 Gable Ridge Lane Regions Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 7951 Brainerd Rd. 
 731-217-1949 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-321-6677 
 
Stephen A. Carlson 815 Young Ave. Raymond James & Associates, Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 537 Market St., Ste. 105 
 423-305-1310 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-2371 
 
Jane M. Cherry 2251 Reed Rd. NW Miller & Martin, PLLC 
 Dalton, GA 30720 832 Georgia Ave., Ste. 1200 
 706-229-9116 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-6600 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 2

 
Patricia W. Childress 1303 Sharon Circle Miller & Martin, PLLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 832 Georgia Ave., Ste. 1200 
 423-756-3202 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-6600 
 
Wanda Clark 121 Bluff Rd. Charlotte Mabry Team 
 Whitwell, TN 37397 202 Manufactorers Rd. 
 907-255-3113 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-593-5583 
 
Joshua R. Commers 4817 Montcrest Dr. Hamilton County Clerk's Office 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 625 Georgia Ave., Room 201 
 423-779-8903 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-209-7910 
 
Henry Woodson DeHart 807 Liberty St. Hank DeHart State Farm 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 821 E. Main St. 
 423-777-5300 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-777-5300 
 
Ivette Marie Diaz 9136 Misty Ridge Drive Gearhiser, Peters, Elliott & Cannon 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 320 McCallie Ave. 
 423-255-7456 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-5171 
 
Ray Eddington 329 Warren Drive Con-Way Freight 
 Chattanooga, TN 37419 210 Shipp Ave. 
 423-825-1435 Chattanooga, TN 37410 
  423-265-6749 
 
Erica Evans 615 S. Jenkins Rd. Camping World RV Sales 
 Chickamauga, GA 30707 6728 Ringgold Rd. 
 423-653-3339 Chattanooga, TN 37412 
  423-892-8275 
 
Kimberley Ewbank 505 S. Burnt Mill Rd. Astec Industries 
 Flintstone, GA 30725 4101 Jerome Ave. 
 423-488-6634 Chattanooga, TN 37407 
  423-867-4210 
 
Angela K. Farley 5708 Edgmon Rd. Hixson First Baptist Church 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 5800 Grubb Rd. 
 423-595-3589 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-2467 
 
Kaylee Ferguson 1247 Northern Court Horton, Ballard & Pemerton, PLLC 
 Hixson, TN 37343 735 Broad St., Ste. 306 
 423-883-7612 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-826-2640 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 3

 
Darlene Foote 5215 Edgmon Rd. McKee Foods Corporation 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 P.O. Box 750 
 423-762-4051 Collegedale, TN 37315 
  423-238-7111 
 
Loyd O'Mally Foster 9101 Villagewood Dr. Chattanoogan Hotel- Benchmark 
 Harrison, TN 37402 1201 S. Broad St. 
 423-774-3882 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-424-3705 
 
Christina M. Gormanson 75 Fox Run Circle North TVFCU 
 Flintstone, GA 30725 P.O. Box 23967 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37422 
  423-634-5100 
 
Dustin Granger 8514 Deer Run Circle Mark T. Young and Associates 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 2895 Northpoint Blvd. 
 423-400-7341 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-870-5225 
 
Katie Hamilton 52 Water Mill Trace Big Red Powersports, LLC 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 1394 Workman Rd. 
 423-987-6811 Chattanooga, TN 37407 
  423-867-7541 
 
Cynthia C. Harris 2334 Hamill Rd. Miller & Martin, PLLC 
 Hixson, TN 37343 832 Georgia Ave., Ste. 1200 
 423-314-7159 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-6600 
 
Kay Hatfield 4735 Winifred Drive Calvary Baptist Church 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 5201 Dayton Blvd. 
 423-877-5854 Chattanooga, TN 37415 
  423-875-8154 
 
Britt Henderson 1089 Reunion Dr. Eyear Optical, Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 7002 Shallowford Rd. 
 423-238-9198 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-400-9529 
 
Kelly G. Hicks 6911 Ridge Creek Dr. Collegedale Public Library 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 9318 Apison Pike 
 423-702-0900 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-396-9300 
 
Julia G. Hillian 7126 Lakeshore Dr. Miller & Martin, PLLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 832 Georgia Ave., Ste. 1200 
 423-503-5939 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-6600 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 4

 
Kim A. Holcomb 6423 Lake Meadows Dr. Hixson First Baptist Church 
 Hixson, TN 37343 5800 Grubb Rd. 
 423-842-8979 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-2467 
 
Briana Howard 2150 Old Harrison Pike TVFCU 
 Cleveland, TN 37311 715 Market St. 
 423-650-8946 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-3600 
 
Donna F. Howell 10 Clift Trl. Benchmark Physical Therapy 
 Rossville, GA 30741 8823 Production Lane 
 423-260-4028 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-238-7217 
 
Cody R. Hurst 3216 State Hwy. 58 S. TVFCU 
 Georgetown, TN 37336 715 Market St. 
 423-435-5796 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-634-3600 
 
Joy P. Jackson 3922 Kensington Dr. Erlanger Health System 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 975 E. 3rd St. 
 423-544-4767 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-778-5808 
 
Richard P. Jahn, Jr. 408 Fern Cliff Law office of Richard. P. Jahn, Jr. 
 Signal Mtn., TN 37377 1200 Mountain Creek Rd., #160 
 423-580-6405 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-870-2125 
 
Chris Jones 2316 Green Valley Rd. America's Thrift Stores 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 248 Northgate Mall Dr., Ste. 122 
 205-213-7469 Chattanooga, TN 37415 
  423-877-4655 
 
Annette Kamin 9811 Smith Morgan Road UBS Financial Services 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 1 Union Square, Ste. 100 
 423-843-9196 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-752-5689 
 
Nicole Keys 101 Barrett Rd., Apt. 3 Fuerst and Associates 
 Calhoun, GA 30701 6005 Century Oaks Dr., Ste. 700 
 706-270-3200 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-899-8555 
 
Dana L. Lewis 1973 Hunt Road SE TVFCU 
 Cleveland, TN 37311 715 Market St. 
 423-432-0875 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-8200 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 5

 
Sarena M. Long 8529 Emmaus Rd. Baptist International Missions, Inc. 
 Harrison, TN 37341 8614 Harrison Bay Rd. 
 423-653-9910 Harrison, TN 37341 
  423-344-5050 
 
Patti J. Ludlow 136 Margareta Lane WDEF Radio- Sunny 92.3 
 East Ridge, TN 37412 2615 Broad St. 
 423-240-3252 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-321-6200 
 
Elizabeth Lundgren 6012 Hill Crest Dr. N/A 
 Harrison, TN 37341 N/A 
 423-260-4675 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Jonathan Lusk 273 Highwater Road SunTrust 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37377 501 Signal Mountain Road 
 423-762-3039 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-242-1945 
 
Anna Marona 20 Mason Dr., Apt. 1009 Davis & Hoss, P.C. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 850 Fort Wood Street 
 850-982-5477 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-266-0605 
 
Joshua Mauk 6123 East Brainerd Rd. Accent Masonry, LLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 Same 
 423-544-3333 Same 
  Same 
 
Kurt Maxwell 713 Weeks Dr. NE TVFCU 
 Cleveland, TN 37312 715 Market St. 
 423-284-4435 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-5900 
 
Elizabeth H. McCoy 1514 Garner Cir. TVFCU 
 Chattanooga, TN 37412 715 Market St. 
 423-834-5953 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-5615 
 
Pam McNabb 1727 E. Colorado St. N/A 
 Hixson, TN 37343 N/A 
 423-842-2584 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Domiciano Melendez, Jr. 7310 Standifer Gap Rd., Apt. 809 Peytons 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 153 Refreshment Lane SW 
 706-313-5711 Cleveland, TN 37311 
  423-614-1000 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 6

 
Rhonda Messer 9738 Sims Harris Road N/A 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 N/A 
 423-344-9240 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Candice N. Miller 304 Granite Dr. Playcore 
 Ft. Oglethorpe, GA 30742 401 Chestnut St., Ste. 310 
 423-991-6989 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-602-5796 
 
Sonal C. Modi 1807 Clear Brook Ct. TN American Water 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 109 Wiehl St. 
 423-893-0502 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-771-4720 
 
Kimberly D. Moore 10530 Hunter Trace Drive Dreaden & Cox 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 735 Broad St., Ste. 404 
 423-309-7873 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-8000 
 
William Nelms, III 3131 Mtn Creek Rd., Apt. 1C7 Hank DeHart Agency 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 821 E. Main St. 
 731-609-4950 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-777-5300 
 
Shelia P. Nelson 425 Graham Rd. Hamilton County Government 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 117 E. 7th St., 700 Newell Tower 
 423-619-1892 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-209-6204 
 
Michelle Nichelson 83 Eagle Landing Dr. Wooden Law Firm, P.C. 
 Flintstone, GA 30725 730 Cherry Street, Ste. B 
 423-593-9511 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-9972 
 
Heather Norwood 1823 West Ct. NW TVFCU 
 Cleveland, TN 37312 715 Market St. 
 423-650-3698 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-634-3600 
 
Kymberly P. Ott 419 McDonald Dr. Medicaid Done Right 
 Rossville, GA 30741 701 Sequoyah Rd. 
 423-582-7781 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 
  888-380-1777 
 
Teresa A. Parker 6777 Hickory Manor Cir. BB&T 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 735 Broad St., Ste. 214 
 423-305-1400 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-826-8487 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 7

 
N. Parrow 3400 Jenkins Rd., Apt. 321 Hamilton County Clerk's Office 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 625 Georgia Ave., Rm. 201 
 423-400-9280 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-209-6500 
 
Casey Phillips 717 Curve St. SunTrust 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 501 Signal Mountain Road 
 423-715-8843 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-242-1945 
 
Deborah Phillips 4405 Delashmitt Rd., Apt. 15 South Eastern Pathology 
 Hixson, TN 37415 1030 E. 4th St. 
 423-208-0635 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-499-6128 
 
Maria Phillips 4617 Montview Dr. Big Red Powersports, LLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 1394 Workman Rd. 
 423-802-3462 Chattanooga, TN 37407 
  423-867-7541 
 
Pamela Piotrowski 96 Greenmeadow Lane BB&T 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 9238 Lee Hwy. 
 901-833-3316 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-238-9487 
 
Michael Alan Ray 9441 Snow Hill Road Excalibur Integrated Systems, Inc. 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 6031 Century Oaks Drive 
 423-987-2778 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-702-9077 
 
Sydney Reason 6133 E. Brainerd Rd. Accent Masonry, LLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 6123 East Brainerd Rd. 
 423-443-1485 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-544-3333 
 
Pamela J. Resler 504 Scenic Highway Fuerst and Associates 
 Lookout Mtn, GA 37350 6005 Century Oaks Dr., Ste. 700 
 404-580-2691 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-899-8555 
 
Brandi A. Robins 8421 Gracie Mac Lane Mark T. Young and Associates 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 2895 Northpoint Blvd. 
 423-322-0673 Hixson, TN 37343 
  N/A 
 
Angela K. Robinson 550 Elizabeth Crest Rd. Tennessee Reproductive Medicine 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 6031 Shallowford Rd., #101 
 423-892-9708 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-876-2229 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 8

 
Michele W. Sloan 8010 Birch Dr. Edward Jones Investments 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 6503 Hixson Pike, Ste. E 
 N/A Hixson, TN 37343 
  N/A 
 
Gloria J. Smith 1340 A Stratton Pl. Dr. N/A 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 N/A 
 423-400-4995 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Paula M. Starring 1219 Cranbrook Dr. Cigna Healthcare 
 Hixson, TN 37343 401 Chesnut St. 
 423-875-9499 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-763-6684 
 
Patricia A. Terry 6220 Shallowford Rd., Apt. 12 William Phillips, D.D.S. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 714 Central Ave. 
 423-314-5710 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-756-8422 
 
Linda D. West 416 Steele Road State of Tennessee 
 Rossville, GA 30741 625 Georgia Ave., Room 206 
 706-866-5358 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-209-6755 
 
Karol Whitaker 1204 Marijon Dr. Copeland, Whittenburg, & Meeks 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 3505 Brainerd Rd., Ste. B 
 423-855-5729 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-629-9000 
 
Susan D. Whitman 3293 Shellmound Rd. United Way of Greater Chattanooga 
 Jasper, TN 37347 630 Market St. 
 423-942-7361 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-752-0320 
 
Angela D. Williams 5502 Castilla Ln. Davis & Hoss, P.C. 
 Signal Mtn., TN 37377 850 Fort Wood Street 
 423-505-6327 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-266-0605 
 
David Lee Williams 38 Jill Lynn Dr. Hank DeHart State Farm 
 Lafayette, GA 30728 821 E. Main St. 
 423-356-2558 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-777-5300 
 
Karlee Wilson 4715 Bonny Oaks Dr., Apt. 2108 HHM Wealth Advisors 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 1200 Market St. 
 615-975-3044 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-826-1670 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 9

 
S. Henry Wooden 2825 Congo Lane N/A 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 N/A 
 423-892-7683 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Margaret C. Wortham 4827 Hunter Trail Evergreen Consulting, Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 1400 Williams Street 
 423-432-2554 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-756-3828 
 
Renee Yarbrough 169 Hickory Crest Dr. TVFCU 
 Cleveland, TN 37323 715 Market St. 
 423-715-4616 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-8200 
 
Cassidy Yepez-Martinez 1204 Henderson Ave. Regions Bank 
 Rossville, GA 30741 1238 Taft Hwy., Ste. 100 
 706-996-7037 Signal Mountain, TN 37377 
  423-886-5080 
 



REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK  
TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION  

NOTARY PUBLIC BONDS AND OATHS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

 
The following Notaries Public elect of Hamilton County appeared in the County Clerk’s Office 
to receive their Commissions duly signed by the Governor of the State of Tennessee and 
countersigned by Honorable Tre Hargett, Secretary of State, bearing the date shown.  They gave 
approved bonds of ten thousand dollars and qualified as by law required. 
 

NAME COMMISSION DATE DATE QUALIFIED 
Claudia E. Reynolds August 13, 2015 September 3, 2015 

Joseph Leigh August 13, 2015 September 3, 2015 
Dana M. Smith June 10, 2015 September 3, 2015 

Victoria Lynn Middleton August 13, 2015 September 4, 2015 
Rebecca Creswell August 13, 2015 September 4, 2015 
Jamie Patterson August 13, 2015 September 4, 2015 
Beth B. Jones August 13, 2015 September 8, 2015 

Sandra L. Miller June 22, 2015 September 8, 2015 
J.Y. Horton August 25, 2015 September 8, 2015 

James Robinson August 13, 2015 September 9, 2015 
Robyn Kendrick August 13, 2015 September 9, 2015 

Amy Nabors July 9, 2015 September 9, 2015 
Megan Dennis March 9, 2015 September 9, 2015 
Jeremy O’Brien August 25, 2015 September 10, 2015 
Deborah Pierce August 13, 2015 September 10, 2015 
Renita Sanders August 25, 2015 September 10, 2015 

Bernadette Picou July 22, 2015 September 11, 2015 
Roma Trakru August 25, 2015 September 11, 2015 

Robin L. Cramer August 25, 2015 September 11, 2015 
Pamela Ingle Laymon March 23, 2015 September 11, 2015 

Corina Olguin August 25, 2015 September 11, 2015 
Steve Sorrells August 25, 2015 September 11, 2015 

Rebecca Butterworth August 25, 2015 September 11, 2015 
Austin Faulkner August 25, 2015 September 11, 2015 
Ruthie Burnams August 25, 2015 September 11, 2015 

Heather Rosemarie Thomas July 22, 2015 September 14, 2015 
James P. Shannon August 13, 2015 September 14, 2015 

Glenn Green August 13, 2015 September 14, 2015 
Joshua Denton July 22, 2015 September 14, 2015 

Jennifer G. Crowell August 13, 2015 September 15, 2015 
Juanita B. Johnson August 13, 2015 September 15, 2015 

Karen N. Scott August 25, 2015 September 15, 2015 
Joseph A. Fidelibus August 25, 2015 September 15, 2015 

Jim Lawrence September 8, 2015 September 15, 2015 
Brooke Shirley February 23, 2015 September 15, 2015 

Peggy S. Lawson August 25, 2015 September 15, 2015 
Sheila Payne May 11, 2015 September 15, 2015 

Andrea L. Arnold August 25, 2015 September 16, 2015 



REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK  
TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION  

NOTARY PUBLIC BONDS AND OATHS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

 
Janet A. Lawrence August 25, 2015 September 17, 2015 
Leigh Ann Bachus August 13, 2015 September 17, 2015 
Regina Simmons August 25, 2015 September 17, 2015 
Martha M. Tiffin August 13, 2015 September 17, 2015 
Adam D. Nami August 25, 2015 September 17, 2015 
Vicki L. Walker August 13, 2015 September 18, 2015 

D. K. Melton August 25, 2015 September 18, 2015 
Vicki Lawson August 25, 2015 September 18, 2015 

Karen Parham August 25, 2015 September 18, 2015 
Tanacha L. Griffin August 13, 2015 September 18, 2015 

Donna G. Igou August 13, 2015 September 18, 2015 
Pamela A. Shelley August 13, 2015 September 18, 2015 

Juanita Teeters August 13, 2015 September 18, 2015 
Sheri Fowler August 25, 2015 September 18, 2015 

Anthony E. Smalley August 25, 2015 September 21, 2015 
Jada W. Creech July 9, 2015 September 21, 2015 

Julie D. Chambers July 22, 2015 September 21, 2015 
Robert J. Batson, Jr.  September 8, 2015 September 22, 2015 

Matthew Bowen September 8, 2015 September 22, 2015 
Dennis A. Buckelew August 25, 2015 September 22, 2015 

Thessela White July 9, 2015 September 22, 2015 
Ashley Byrd August 25, 2015 September 22, 2015 

Deborah L. Knam August 25, 2015 September 23, 2015 
Berkley Gaillard May 9, 2015 September 23, 2015 

Kim L. Wall March 9, 2015 September 23, 2015 
Jeannetta L. Hendricks July 22, 2015 September 23, 2015 

Phyllis D. Bice September 8, 2015 September 23, 2015 
F. A. Brown Collins February 25, 2013 September 23, 2015 

Caren Green August 25, 2015 September 23, 2015 
Karen S. McColpin September 8, 2015 September 24, 2015 

   
 



No. 1015-2 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT MEMBERS TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 
  
WHEREAS, this county legislative body established an Audit Committee on March 

30, 2014, pursuant to Resolution No. 313-22, with those duties and 
responsibilities as enumerated in resolution; and  

 
WHEREAS,  the resolution establishing the Audit Committee stated that the        

committee would consist of three (3) members to be comprised of 
members of the County Commission, and/or citizens of Hamilton 
County, or a combination of both as shall be appointed annually by the 
Chairman of County Commission and approved by vote of the County 
Commission;  and 

 
WHEREAS,  Chairman Chester Bankston has appointed Commissioner Warren  
                         Mackey Commissioner Jim Fields and himself to serve on the Audit 
   Committee until September 30, 2016 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the appointments of Chairman Chester Bankston, Commissioner Warren Mackey  
            and Commissioner Jim Fields to the Hamilton County Audit Committee, for a term               
            ending September 30, 2016, are hereby approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1015-3 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF ONE MEMBER AND 
REAPPOINTMENT OF TWO MEMBERS BY THE COUNTY MAYOR TO THE 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF ELECTRICAL EXAMINERS, TERMS ENDING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2019. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to County Council Resolution of February 16, 1972, as 
amended by Resolution of October 4, 1972, members of the Hamilton 
County Board of Electrical Examiners are appointed by the County 
Mayor and confirmed by the Board of County Commissioners; and, 

WHEREAS, the County Mayor has appointed Dewayne Woodall (Public Member) 
for a term of four years, beginning October 6, 2015 and ending 
September 7, 2019; and,  

WHEREAS, the County Mayor has reappointed James Walker (Electrical Engineer) 
and C. Alan Roderick (Electric Power Board) for terms of four years, 
beginning October 6, 2015 and ending September 7, 2019.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

That the appointment of Dewayne Woodall and the reappointment of James Walker and C. 
Alan Roderick to the County Board of Electrical Examiners are hereby confirmed for the term 
as stated above. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

October 6, 2015 
Date 









No. 1015-4 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPOINTMENT OF A REPRESENTATIVE 
TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS ADVISORY 
BOARD. 

WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Community Corrections Program is a valuable 
program which provides a sentencing alternative for non-violent 
offenders; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to T.C.A. 40-36-201 et seq., in order to qualify for state 
funding under the felony program administered by the Tennessee 
Department of Correction, a Community Corrections Advisory Board 
must be established; and, 

WHEREAS, the County Mayor, District Attorney and Sheriff have appointed Lee 
Ortwein to a two year term beginning October 6, 2015 and ending 
October 6, 2017. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

That the appointment of Lee Ortwein to the Hamilton County Community Corrections 
Advisory Board is hereby confirmed for the term as stated above. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

October 6, 2015 
Date 



    Lee Ortwein 
Ortwein Law Offices 

3828 Dayton Blvd. 
PO Box 15307 

Chattanooga, TN 37415 
(423) 265-0296 

ortlaw2@aol.com 
 

Career Experience 
 
1998-2015 Ortwein & Ortwein, PC, Ortwein & Cory LLC, and Ortwein Law Office 
 
Served as trial lawyer representing clients in civil and criminal cases, including personal injury, 
contract disputes, adoptions, estates, domestic matters, mail and wire fraud, homicide, firearms 
violations, drug conspiracies, robberies, felony assaults, and DUIs.  
 
Significant experience in all aspects of litigation, including drafting filings, drafting and arguing 
motions, complex discovery review and management, jury analysis and selection, jury and bench 
trials and appellate work, including briefing and argument. 
 
Licensed to practice law in Tennessee and Georgia 
 
Member of the Federal Criminal Justice Act Panel, representing indigent defendants in federal 
district court for more than ten years.  
 
Lead or co-lead counsel in approximately thirty jury trials in State and Federal courts, both 
criminal and civil litigation, in Tennessee, Georgia and New Jersey. 
 
Written and submitted in excess of thirty briefs to the Sixth Circuit Federal Court of Appeals, 
participated in oral arguments, requests for Re-Hearing En Banc; submitted briefs and argued 
before the Tennessee Criminal Court of Appeals.   
 
Acting as Chief Administrative Officer for three law firms managing all aspects of firm business, 
including personnel, billing, accounting, tax and other regulatory filings and accounts payable. 
 
Education/Relevant History 
 
Born in Hamilton County, Chattanooga, Tennessee 
Attended Hamilton County public schools from kindergarten through high school, graduating 
from Hixson High School in 1991.  
 
1995, Bachelors Degree, Cum Laude, University of Tennessee, Knoxville, Tennessee 
 
1998, Juris Doctor, University of Memphis 

1996 Dean’s Excellence Award, Decedent’s Estates 
1997 Dean’s Excellence Award, Tennessee Constitutional Law  



No. 1015-5 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A STATE OF TENNESSEE, GOVERNOR’S HIGHWAY 
SAFETY OFFICE GRANT FOR THE “SAFE JOURNEY” PROJECT WITH A TERM 
ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND AMENDING THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE OPERATING 
BUDGET BY ADDING $124,999.96 TO REVENUES & EXPENDITURES. 
 
WHEREAS, the Governor’s Highway Safety Office has awarded the Sheriff’s Office a grant, 
via federal funding, with a project titled “Safe Journey”, in the amount of $124,999.96; and, 
 
WHEREAS, these grant funds will be used to educate the community on child passenger safety 
and train volunteers in the state for car seat installation; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this project will commence immediately and will have an ending date of 
September 30, 2016; and, 
 
WHEREAS, funding for this grant will be used to pay for salaries and benefits, and used to 
purchase capital and various project related materials; and 
  
WHEREAS, no local match is required by Hamilton County, nor the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A STATE OF TENNESSEE, GOVERNOR’S HIGHWAY SAFETY 
OFFICE GRANT FOR THE “SAFE JOURNEY” PROJECT WITH A TERM ENDING SEPTEMBER 
30, 2016 AND AMENDING THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE OPERATING BUDGET BY ADDING 
$124,999.96 TO REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLICE WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1015-6 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO HARRISON RECREATIONAL BOOSTER 
CLUB IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FIVE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on their 
nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Greg Beck has expressed a desire to allocate One Thousand Dollars 

($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District Five, to 
Harrison Recreational Booster Club to assist with the purchase of recreation equipment; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) from General Fund Discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Harrison Recreational Booster Club to assist with the purchase of recreation equipment. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 1015-7 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO WALDEN’S RIDGE EMERGENCY 
SERVICES IN THE AMOUNT OF THIRTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($30,000.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT TWO. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Jim Fields has expressed a desire to allocate Thirty Thousand Dollars 

($30,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District Two, to 
Walden’s Ridge Emergency Services (a volunteer fire department in Hamilton County), 
to assist with the purchase of equipment and for training; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated 
to Walden’s Ridge Emergency Services, a volunteer fire department, to assist with the purchase of 
equipment and for training. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 



2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general
welfare of the residents of the County.

3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County
in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all
of these laws and regulations.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

October 6, 2015 
Date 



No. 1015-8 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO ORANGE GROVE CENTER IN THE 
AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Chester Bankston desires to allocate Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) 

from General Fund discretionary monies to Orange Grove Center to assist with the 
remodeling of their Recycling Center; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Orange Grove Center to assist with the remodeling of their Recycling Center. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 1015-9 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO ORANGE GROVE CENTER, INC., IN 
THE AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT SEVEN. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Sabrena Smedley desires to allocate Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) 

from General Fund discretionary monies (as allotted to District Seven) to Orange Grove 
Center, Inc., to assist with remodeling and recycling; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies (as allotted to 
District Seven) be appropriated to Orange Grove Center, Inc., to assist with remodeling and recycling. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 1015-10 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO ORANGE GROVE CENTER, INC., IN 
THE AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey desires to allocate Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) 

from General Fund discretionary monies (as allotted to District Four) to Orange Grove 
Center, Inc., to assist with the purchase of equipment to process glass; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies (as allotted to 
District Four) be appropriated to Orange Grove Center, Inc., to assist with the purchase of equipment to 
process glass. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 1015-11 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO HIGHLAND PARK NEIGHBORHOOD 
ASSOCIATION IN THE AMOUNT OF THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3,000.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey desires to allocate Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00) 

from General Fund discretionary monies to Highland Park Neighborhood Association to 
assist with improvements at Shaw Park; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to 
District Four, be appropriated to Highland Park Neighborhood Association to assist with improvements 
at Shaw Park. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 1015-12 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO SCULPTURE FIELDS AT MONTAGUE 
PARK IN THE AMOUNT OF SIX THOUSAND DOLLARS ($6,000.00) FROM 
DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Sculpture Fields at Montague Park is a nonprofit charitable organization located on 

property owned by the City of Chattanooga; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sculpture Fields at Montague Park has contracted with Peter Lundberg to build a 

sculpture honoring the servicemen who lost their lives on July 16, 2015, at the U. S. 
Naval and Marine Reserve Center on Amnicola Highway in Chattanooga; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Six Thousand Dollars 

($6,000.00) from discretionary Bond Funds, as allotted to District Four, to assist with 
the purchase of materials for the sculpture; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the 

citizens of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Six Thousand Dollars ($6,000.00) from discretionary Bond Funds, as allotted to District Four, 
be appropriated to Sculpture Fields at Montague Park to assist with the purchase of materials for a 
sculpture honoring the servicemen who lost their lives on July 16, 2015, at the U. S. Naval and 
Marine Reserve Center on Amnicola Highway in Chattanooga. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 













No. 1015-13 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO SOUTHEAST TENNESSEE HEALTH 
CONSORTIUM IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($2,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT FOUR. 

WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 
Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 

WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 
civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Two Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Southeast 
Tennessee Health Consortium to assist with their Youth Blast Conference 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 
of Hamilton County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  

That Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as 
allotted to District Four, be appropriated to Southeast Tennessee Health Consortium to assist with their 
Youth Blast Conference 2015. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are
appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A.



2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general
welfare of the residents of the County.

3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County
in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all
of these laws and regulations.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

October 6, 2015 
Date 











No. 1015-14 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO STOP THE MADNESS NATIONAL, INC., 
IN THE AMOUNT OF THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Three Thousand 

Dollars ($3,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Stop the Madness 
National, Inc., to assist with their Summer Youth Enrichment Camp; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to 
District Four, be appropriated to Stop the Madness National, Inc., to assist with their Summer Youth 
Enrichment Camp. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1015-15 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO CHURCHVILLE NEIGHBORHOOD 
ASSOCIATION, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate One Thousand Dollars 

($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District Four, to 
Churchville Neighborhood Association, Inc., to assist with the National Night Out Event; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Churchville Neighborhood Association, Inc., to assist with the National Night Out Event. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1015-16 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
  
A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF 
GREATER CHATTANOOGA, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($1,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED 
TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate One Thousand Five 

Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to assist the 
Community Foundation of Greater Chattanooga, Inc., in their endeavor to provide 
funding for the Lincoln Park Annual Community Event; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as 
allotted to District Four, be appropriated to Community Foundation of Greater Chattanooga, Inc., to 
assist them in their endeavor to provide funding for the Lincoln Park Annual Community Event. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 



 

 

the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 

organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 1015-17 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF ELEVEN THOUSAND THREE 
HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($11,350.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES 
(AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT ONE) TO ASSIST THE CITY OF SODDY DAISY WITH 
REPAIRS AT VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK. 
 
WHEREAS, Veterans Memorial Park, located in the City of Soddy Daisy, is in need of repairing its 

walking track; and 
 
WHEREAS, County Commissioner Randy Fairbanks has expressed a desire to use Eleven Thousand 

Three Hundred Fifty Dollars ($11,350.00) of General Fund discretionary monies (as 
allotted to District One) to assist the City of Soddy Daisy with these repairs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the expenditure of Eleven Thousand Three Hundred Fifty Dollars ($11,350.00) from General 
Fund discretionary monies (as allotted to District One) be approved to assist the City of Soddy Daisy 
with repairs to the walking track at Veterans Memorial Park. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1015-18 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO BAKEWELL COMMUNITY CENTER IN 
THE AMOUNT OF SIX THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED DOLLARS ($6,400.00) FROM GENERAL 
FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT ONE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Randy Fairbanks has expressed a desire to allocate Six Thousand Four 

Hundred Dollars ($6,400.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Bakewell 
Community Center to assist with building renovations: and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Six Thousand Four Hundred Dollars ($6,400.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be 
appropriated to Bakewell Community Center to assist with building renovations. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 1015-19 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SUBMIT A 
FASTTRACK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND GRANT 
APPLICATION TO THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC 
AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
 EXCEED $5.5 MILLION TO ASSIST GESTAMP CHATTANOOGA, LLC 
WITH EQUIPMENT AND BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS TO SUPPORT 
THE EXPANSION OF THE COMPANY’S HAMILTON COUNTY 
OPERATIONS 
 

WHEREAS,  Gestamp Chattanooga, LLC, a major automotive parts supplier, will invest 
$180 million in land, building and equipment to triple its operations in support 
of Volkswagen’s new SUV as well as other automotive customers; and,  

 
WHEREAS,  Gestamp’s expansion will add 510 new jobs to the existing 265 employee 

workforce and pay an average annual wage of $35,527; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development offers a 

FastTrack Economic Development Fund grant program (FastTrack ED Fund) 
to help with expenses such as building retrofits, repairs or improvements; 
relocation or purchase of equipment; relocation of personnel; new construction 
and other items associated with company relocation or expansion; and,    

 
WHEREAS,  Hamilton County will apply for a FastTrack ED Fund grant on behalf of 

Gestamp in an amount not to exceed $5.5 million to assist the company with 
equipment and building improvements; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  No local match is required; and, 
 
WHEREAS, This project will be accounted for through the Industrial Development Fund; 

and 
 



 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to submit an application to the 
Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development for a 
FastTrack Economic Development Fund grant in an amount not to exceed  
$5.5 million to assist Gestamp Chattanooga, LLC with equipment and building 
improvements to support the expansion of the company’s Hamilton County 
operations. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1015-20 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION (I) TO MAKE CERTAIN FINDINGS RELATING TO THE 
EXPANSION OF AN EXISTING MANUFACTURING FACILITY LOCATED IN THE 
ENTERPRISE SOUTH INDUSTRIAL PARK (THE “PROJECT”) TO BE 
CONSTRUCTED, EQUIPPED AND OPERATED BY GESTAMP CHATTANOOGA, 
LLC ("GESTAMP") ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4120 JERSEY PIKE 
CHATTANOGGA, HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE (THE "SUPPLEMENTAL 
PROJECT"), (II) TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE EXISTING AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU 
OF AD VALOREM TAXES WITH THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 
THE COUNTY OF HAMILTON, TENNESSEE (THE "BOARD"), GESTAMP, 
HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE (THE “COUNTY”) AND THE CITY OF 
CHATTANOOGA (THE “CITY”) WITH RESPECT TO EXPANDING THE PROJECT 
TO ENCOMPASS THE SUPPLEMENTAL PROJECT (THE "PILOT AGREEMENT 
AMENDMENT"), AND (III) TO DELEGATE CERTAIN AUTHORITY TO THE 
BOARD RELATING TO THE PILOT AGREEMENT AMENDMENT. 
 

WHEREAS,  Gestamp, the Board, the City and the County are parties to the 
PILOT Agreement dated as of July, 2015 (the “PILOT 
Agreement”) in connection with the construction, equipping and 
operating by Gestamp of an expansion of its existing 
manufacturing facility in the Enterprise South Industrial Park in 
Chattanooga, Hamilton County, Tennessee (the "Project"); and 

 
WHEREAS, Gestamp has indicated that it desires to acquire certain additional  

real property and improvements in connection with the Project 
described in the PILOT Agreement, such real property being 
approximately 29.20 acres located at 4120 Jersey Pike in 
Chattanooga, Hamilton County, Tennessee (the “Jersey Pike Real 
Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Project, Gestamp has indicated its    



                       intention to make improvements to the existing buildings on the  
                       Jersey Pike Real Property and to construct new improvements  
                       thereon collectively, the “New Jersey Pike Improvements”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in connection with the Project, Gestamp has indicated its  
                      intention to acquire certain machinery, equipment and other  
                      personal property (collectively, the “Jersey Pike Equipment”);  
                      and 
 
WHEREAS, Gestamp has requested that the PILOT Agreement be amended in  

order to include (i) the New Jersey Pike Improvements as part of  
the Real Property Improvements, as defined in the PILOT 
Agreement, and (ii) the Jersey Pike Equipment within the 
Personal Property, as defined in the PILOT Agreement (the New 
Jersey Pike Improvements and the Jersey Pike Equipment 
collectively, the “Supplemental Project”); and  
 

WHEREAS, an amendment to the PILOT Agreement will be required to  
                      Identify and describe the components of the Supplemental  
                      Project, so that they can be included under the PILOT Agreement.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED 
 
  That we do hereby find that substantial benefits to the County economy will be  
  derived from the Project as amended by the inclusion of the Supplemental     
                        Project and that the In Lieu Payments contemplated under the PILOT  
                        Agreement will be in furtherance of the Board's public purposes; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that, having made such findings, we do 
hereby approve the PILOT Agreement Amendment in the form attached to this 
Resolution and do hereby authorize the Mayor to enter into the PILOT 
Agreement Amendment on behalf of the County, such PILOT Agreement 
Amendment to be substantially in the form attached to this Resolution with 
such changes thereto as he shall approve; and 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that we do hereby authorize the Board to 
enter into such PILOT leases and amendments to the existing PILOT leases 
with Gestamp as the Board shall deem to be necessary as a result of the PILOT 
Agreement and the PILOT Agreement Amendment. 



 

 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU 
OF AD VALOREM TAXES 

THIS AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES (the 

“Amendment”) is made and entered into as of ___________, 2015, by and among THE 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF HAMILTON, TENNESSEE 

(the “Board”); GESTAMP CHATTANOOGA, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company that 

is authorized to do business in Tennessee (the “Company”); the CITY OF CHATTANOOGA, 

TENNESSEE (the “City”); and HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE (the “County”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the Board, the Company, the City and the County are parties to that certain 

Agreement for Payments in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes dated as of ______________, 2015 (the 

“PILOT Agreement”): and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the PILOT Agreement, the Company will make certain 

payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to the Property (as that term is defined in the 

PILOT Agreement); and 

WHEREAS, the Company has indicated that it desires to acquire certain additional real 

property and improvements in connection with the Project described in the PILOT Agreement, 

such real property being approximately 29.20 acres located at 4120 Jersey Pike in Chattanooga, 

Hamilton County, Tennessee and being more particularly described on Exhibit 1 attached hereto 

and by this reference made a part hereof (the "Jersey Pike Real Property"); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Project, the Company has indicated its intention to 

make improvements to the existing buildings on the Jersey Pike Real Property and to construct 
 
C LPS 738526 v 2 
2914883-000003  08/24/2015  

 



new improvements on the Jersey Pike Real Property (collectively, the "New Jersey Pike 

Improvements"); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Project the Company has indicated its intent to 

acquire certain machinery, equipment and other personal property, as more particularly described 

on Exhibit 2 attached hereto and made a part hereof (collectively, the "Jersey Pike Equipment"); 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the City, the County and the Board enter 

into this Amendment in order to include the New Jersey Pike Improvements as part of the Real 

Property Improvements (as that term is defined in the PILOT Agreement), in order to include the 

Jersey Pike Equipment as part of the Personal Property (as that term is defined in the PILOT 

Agreement) and in order to include the New Jersey Pike Improvements and the Jersey Pike 

Equipment as part of the Project (as that term is defined in the PILOT Agreement); 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF the premises and the mutual covenants 

set forth herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Amendments to PILOT Agreement.  The PILOT Agreement is hereby amended 

as follows: 

a. The term "Real Property Improvements" as used in the PILOT Agreement shall 

include the New Jersey Pike Improvements, together with the improvements to be constructed on 

the Land, but shall not include the buildings currently existing on the Jersey Pike Property (the 

"Existing Jersey Pike Buildings"). 

2 
C LPS 738526 v 2 
2914883-000003  08/24/2015  

 



b. The term "Personal Property" as used in the PILOT Agreement shall include the 

Jersey Pike Equipment, together with the machinery, equipment and other personal property 

described in Exhibit B to the PILOT Agreement . 

c. The term "Project" as used in the PILOT Agreement shall include the New Jersey 

Pike Improvements and the Jersey Pike Equipment, together with the Land, Real Property 

Improvements and Personal Property (as those terms are used in the PILOT Agreement), but 

shall not include the Jersey Pike Real Property or the Existing Jersey Pike Buildings; provided, 

however, that amounts expended by the Company to acquire the Jersey Pike Real Property and 

the Existing Jersey Pike Buildings shall count toward the Minimum Investment Requirement (as 

that term is defined in the PILOT Agreement).  

2. Except as set forth in paragraph 1 above, the PILOT Agreement shall remain 

unchanged and in full force and effect. 

3. The Board will enter into such amendments to the Leases (as that term is defined 

in the PILOT Agreement) as the Board shall deem to be necessary in order to reflect the 

amendments to the PILOT Agreement set forth in this Amendment. 

4. This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be 

an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

[Signatures on following pages.]

3 
C LPS 738526 v 2 
2914883-000003  08/24/2015  

 



 

[The Industrial Development Board of the County of Hamilton, Tennessee – Signature Page to 
Amendment to Agreement for Payments in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Industrial Development Board of the County of 

Hamilton, Tennessee has caused its duly authorized officers to execute this Amendment as of the 

date first above written. 

THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF HAMILTON, 
TENNESSEE 

By: ________________________________ 
     Title:       

ATTEST: 

       
Title:       

S-1 
C LPS 738526 v 2 
2914883-000003  08/24/2015  

 



 

[Gestamp Chattanooga, LLC – Signature Page to Amendment to Agreement for Payments in 
Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Gestamp Chattanooga, LLC has caused its duly authorized 

officer to execute this Amendment as of the date first above written. 

GESTAMP CHATTANOOGA, LLC 

By: ________________________________ 
Title:_______________________________ 

S-2 
C LPS 738526 v 2 
2914883-000003  08/24/2015  

 



 
[City of Chattanooga, Tennessee – Signature Page to Amendment to Agreement for Payments in 

Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Chattanooga, Tennessee has caused its duly 

authorized official to execute this Amendment as of the date first above written. 

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE 

BY: ________________________________ 
Mayor 

S-3 
C LPS 738526 v 2 
2914883-000003  08/24/2015  

 



 

[Hamilton County, Tennessee – Signature Page to Amendment to Agreement for Payments in 
Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Hamilton County, Tennessee has caused its duly authorized 

official to execute this Amendment as of the date first above written. 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

BY: _________________________________ 
County Mayor 

 

S-4 
C LPS 738526 v 2 
2914883-000003  08/24/2015  

 



EXHIBIT 1 
TO 

 AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES 
 

Legal Description of Jersey Pike Real Property 

[Legal description from title commitment to be inserted.] 

1-1 
C LPS 738526 v 2 
2914883-000003  08/24/2015  

 



 

EXHIBIT 2 
TO 

 AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES 
 

Jersey Pike Personal Property 

During the Tax Abatement Period, the Project shall include all machinery, equipment and other 
tangible personal property that is installed or otherwise located on or about or used in connection 
with the real property described in Exhibit 1 attached to this Amendment, together with 
replacements thereof and substitutions therefor, in connection with the Company's operations on 
such real property. 

2-1 
C LPS 738526 v 2 
2914883-000003  08/24/2015  

 



  

B-1 
C LPS 738526 v 2 
2914883-000003  08/24/2015  

 



No. 1015-21 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF AUGUST 1, 2015, THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2015, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between August 1, 2015, through August 31, 2015.  
 
 August 6, 2015, $11,157.99 for 7,222 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.5450 per gallon from 

Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 August 6, 2015, $13,275.68 for 8,361 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.58781 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 August 10, 2015, $1,367.18 for 694 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.9700 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 August 17, 2015, $13,852.41 for 8,371 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.65481 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 August 18, 2015, $12,958.08 for 7,986 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.6226 per gallon 

from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company, Inc.  
 
 August 21, 2015, $12,781.04 for 8,403 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.521009 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 August 25, 2015, $2,140.52 for 1,180 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.8140 

per gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 August 28, 2015, $10,846.28 for 7,927 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.36827 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants. 
 



 

 

  August 28, 2015, $10,953.94 for 7,427 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.474881 per gallon 
from Parman Lubricants.  

 
 August 31, 2015, $4,525.00 for 2,500 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.8100 

per gallon from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company, Inc. 
 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 1015-22 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SOFTWARE UPDATE AND SUPPORT CONTRACT FOR 
CITYWORKS FROM AZTECA SYSTEMS, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 
11, 2015, THROUGH NOVEMBER 10, 2016, FOR THE GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 
SYSTEMS DEPARTMENT AMOUNTING TO $33,750.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, a quotation was received for a one (1) year update and support contract for 

Cityworks Software used by the Geographic Information Systems Department and 
other agencies; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Azteca Systems, Inc. is considered a sole source for this service; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the quotation from Azteca Systems, Inc. amounting to $33,750.00 was considered 

reasonable; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the quotation from Azteca Systems, Inc. for a one (1) year update and support  contract for 
Cityworks Software, beginning November 11, 2015, through November 10, 2016, amounting to 
$33,750.00 for the Geographic Information Systems Department is hereby accepted, and authorizing 
the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 1015-23 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF LEE SMITH, INC. FOR ONE (1) TANDEM 
AXLE DUMP TRUCK AMOUNTING TO $119,250.00 FOR THE HIGHWAY 
DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) tandem 

axle chassis with dump for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Lee Smith, Inc. amounting to $119,250.00 was considered to be 

the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Lee Smith, Inc. for one (1) tandem axle dump truck amounting to $119,250.00 
for the Highway Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 





























































No. 1015-24 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
October 6, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS” SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROADS AND TO 
ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFOR: Will Drive and Tom Tom Trail. 
 
WHEREAS, The above listed roads are new subdivision roads in the The View at 

White Oak Subdivision and have been inspected by the Hamilton 
County Division of Public Works and meet current County Subdivision 
Regulations; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the list of roads, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference thereto as though fully and completely copied 
verbatim herein, completely describes the amendments to be made to 
the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits”. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named roads be declared district roads, 2nd class. 
 
 2. That the attached amendments to the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” 

are hereby adopted and approved. 
 
 3. That the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 6, 2015 

  
Date 

 



 
ROAD NAME               DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Will Drive Will Drive is in the 2nd Civil District, the 9th 

County Commission District in the The 
View At White Oak  Subdivision on State 
Tax Map Numbers 86, leading from State 
Highway 58 west 0.36 miles to a temporary 
turnaround, has a 50’ right-of-way, a 8” 
stone base, a 2” plant mix pavement with 
concrete curbs, and was built by Swanson 
Construction and Lofty Grading and Paving 
for the Developer Bill Fine. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 25 

M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when 
posted, shall be a misdemeanor and 
punishable as such as provided by the laws 
of the State. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Tom Tom Trail Tom Tom Trail is in the 2nd Civil District, 

the 9th County Commission District in the 
The View At White Oak  Subdivision on 
State Tax Map Numbers 86, leading from 
Will Drive west 0.03 miles to a turnaround, 
has a 40’ right-of-way, a 8” stone base, a 2” 
plant mix pavement with concrete curbs, and 
was built by Swanson Construction and 
Lofty Grading  and Paving for the Developer 
Bill Fine. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 

M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when 
posted, shall be a misdemeanor and 
punishable as such as provided by the laws 
of the State. 

 

 


	10-6-15 Public Agenda
	1015-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - September 9, 2015_1840_09-09-15 Recessed
	1015-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - September 9, 2015 _1841_09-09-15 Agenda
	1015-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - September 16, 2015 _1842_09-16-15 Regular
	1015-_S_Report_Criminal Court Clerk's Report - July 2015_1818_Criminal Court Clerk Report July 2015
	1015-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report - August 2015_1825_August 2015 Monthly
	1015-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report - August 2015_1826_August 2015 Excess Fee
	1015-_S_Report_Juvenile Court Clerk's Report - July 2015_1850_Juvenile Court Clerk Report July 2015
	1015-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1846_10-06-15
	1015-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1846_10-06-15A
	1015-2_R_Appointment(s)_The Hamilton County Audit Committee_1824_Audit Committee Resolution-Chairman Bankston
	1015-3_R_Appointment(s)_Appointment and Reappointment of members to Hamilton County Board of Electrical Examiners._1848_Electrical Examiners
	1015-3_S_Appointment(s)_Appointment and Reappointment of members to Hamilton County Board of Electrical Examiners._1848_Electrical Examiners Attachment
	1015-4_R_Appointment(s)_Appointment of Lee Ortwein to Hamilton County Community Corrections Advisory Board._1849_Ortwein
	1015-4_S_Appointment(s)_Appointment of Lee Ortwein to Hamilton County Community Corrections Advisory Board._1849_Ortwein attachmnet
	1015-5_R_Sheriff Hammond_Safe Journey Grant_1844_STATE OF TENNESSEE
	1015-6_R_Commissioner Beck_Appropriation to Harrison Recreational Booster Club_1829_Comm Beck Harrison Recreation
	1015-6_S_Commissioner Beck_Appropriation to Harrison Recreational Booster Club_1829_0548_001
	1015-7_R_Commissioner Fields_Appropriation for Walden's Ridge Emergency Services_1822_Comm Fields Waldens Ridge
	1015-8_R_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for Orange Grove Center_1834_Comm Bankston OrangeGrove
	1015-8_S_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for Orange Grove Center_1834_0567_001
	1015-9_R_Commissioner Turner-Smedley_Appropriation for Orange Grove Center_1839_Comm Smedley Orange Grove
	1015-9_S_Commissioner Turner-Smedley_Appropriation for Orange Grove Center_1839_0587_001
	1015-10_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Orange Grove Center_1838_Comm Mackey Orange Grove1
	1015-10_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Orange Grove Center_1838_0587_001
	1015-11_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation to Highland Park Neighborhood Association_1812_Comm Mackey Highland Park NA
	1015-11_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation to Highland Park Neighborhood Association_1812_0481_001
	1015-12_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Sculpture Fields at Montague Park_1819_Comm Mackey Sculpture Fields
	1015-12_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Sculpture Fields at Montague Park_1819_0494_001
	1015-13_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Southeast Tennessee Health Consortium_1823_Comm Mackey SE TN Health
	1015-13_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Southeast Tennessee Health Consortium_1823_0526_001
	1015-14_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation to Stop the Madness National Inc._1827_Comm Mackey Stop the Madness
	1015-14_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation to Stop the Madness National Inc._1827_0546_001
	1015-15_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation to Churchville Neighborhood Association Inc_1828_Comm Mackey Churchville NA
	1015-15_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation to Churchville Neighborhood Association Inc_1828_0547_001
	1015-16_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation to the Community Foundation of Greater Chattanooga Inc_1831_Comm Mackey Comm Foundation
	1015-16_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation to the Community Foundation of Greater Chattanooga Inc_1831_0558_001
	1015-17_R_Commissioner Fairbanks_Appropriation for the City of Soddy Daisy_1813_Comm Fairbanks City of SD
	1015-18_R_Commissioner Fairbanks_Appropriation for Bakewell Community Center_1814_Comm Fairbanks Bakewell Comm Ctr
	1015-18_S_Commissioner Fairbanks_Appropriation for Bakewell Community Center_1814_0482_001
	1015-19_R_County Mayor_FastTrack Economic Development Fund Grant application for Gestamp Chattanooga LLC_1836_Gestamp FastTrack Res to Apply Final (2)
	1015-20_R_Rheubin Taylor_Amendment to Gestamp Pilot Agreement_1821_Resolution Amending Gestamp PILOT
	1015-20_S_Rheubin Taylor_Amendment to Gestamp Pilot Agreement_1821_Gestamp Amendment Attachment
	By: ________________________________
	GESTAMP CHATTANOOGA, LLC
	By: ________________________________
	Title:_______________________________
	CITY OF CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE
	BY: ________________________________
	Mayor
	HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE
	BY: _________________________________
	County Mayor

	1015-21_R_Albert Kiser_Fuel August 2015_1820_Fuel Resolution August 2015
	1015-21_S_Albert Kiser_Fuel August 2015_1820_August 2015 docs
	1015-22_R_Albert Kiser_Cityworks Software Update and Support Contract_1832_RES. CITYWORKS SOFTWARE UPDATE & SUPPORT CONTRACT
	1015-22_S_Albert Kiser_Cityworks Software Update and Support Contract_1832_Cityworks Software Update & Support Contract
	1015-23_R_Todd Leamon_Tandem Axle Dump Truck_1833_RES. TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCK
	1015-23_S_Todd Leamon_Tandem Axle Dump Truck_1833_Tandem Axle Dump Truck
	1015-24_R_Todd Leamon_New Subdivision Roads_1837_WhiteOakSubdivision
	1015-24_S_Todd Leamon_New Subdivision Roads_1837_TheViewatWhiteOak8-15_supportDocuments



